
Portfolio Holder Decisions

1.  Application for Discharge of an Agreement relating to land at 
Bloomfield Garage, Cockerham Road, Bay Horse, Forton

(Pages 1 - 20)

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

The portfolio holder will make a decision on this item after seven days have elapsed 
(including the date of publication). 
 

Report of: Portfolio Holder Date of publication 

Garry Payne, 
Chef Executive 

Councillor Alan Vincent, 
Resources Portfolio Holder 

4 October 2018 

 

Application for Discharge of an Agreement relating to land at Bloomfield 
Garage, Cockerham Road, Bay Horse, Forton 

 
 
1. Purpose of report 

 
 1.1 

 
To consider a request for the discharge of an Agreement dated 8 July 1988 
made under section 52 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1971 and 
section 33 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 
relating to land at Bloomfield Garage, Cockerham Road, Bay Horse, Forton 
attached at Appendix 1 (‘Agreement’).  
 

2. Outcomes 
 

 2.1 
 

Discharge would leave the land unrestricted by the terms of the Agreement 
and would lead to removal of the related entry in the Local Land Charges 
Register. It would remove a restriction that may deter proposed purchasers 
and occupiers of the potential new residential development. 
 

3. Recommendation 
 

 3.1 
 

To authorise the Senior Solicitor to obtain the discharge of the Agreement 
by way of negotiation and completion of an appropriate deed of discharge 
with the relevant parties. 
 

4. Background 
 

 4.1 
 

In 1988 the then owner of the industrial land at Bloomfield Garage, 
Cockerham Road, Bay Horse, Forton shown edged red on the Agreement 
(“Land”) entered into the Agreement with the council in connection with 
planning application reference number 02/88/0213 for the ‘swapping over 
of the storage building and workshop, and creation of new access and 
hardstanding’ on the Land. The Agreement requires that (i) no further 
buildings shall be erected or placed on the Land without the consent in 
writing of the council first being obtained and (ii) no further areas of 
hardstanding shall be laid or constructed on the Land without the consent 

Portfolio Holder Report 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



in writing of the Council being first obtained. It also requires that no building 
structure or erection shall be constructed erected or placed on the Land 
except in accordance with the planning application, including its 
landscaping requirements. The Agreement provides further that these 
restrictions apply permanently. Planning permission was granted for the 
development following the completion of the Agreement.  
 

 4.2 The request to discharge the Agreement has been made by the present 
owner of the Land who also owns the wider site which is shown edged red 
on the plan at Appendix 2 and which incorporates the Land. The 
approximate position of the Land is shown on this plan (and on the 
subsequent plans) shaded blue.   
 

 4.3 In August 2000 a planning application reference number 02/00/0656 was 
submitted in respect of the land shown edged red on the plan at Appendix 
3 to allow the alteration/extension to the buildings on the Land to form one 
self-contained flat. Planning permission was granted subject to a condition 
that the flat be occupied only by a person employed or last employed at 
the Bloomfield Garage. This permission has been implemented. 
 

 4.4 On 19 February 2016 planning permission was granted under reference 
number 15/01000/FUL for “change of use of existing barn (part residential)” 
to create one dwelling including associated access and car parking 
(following demolition of existing workshop) in respect the land shown 
edged red on the plan at Appendix 4. A condition requires that the barn be 
occupied only by a person or persons wholly employed in the associated 
commercial use of Bloomfield Garage and haulage yard and their 
dependants. 
 

 4.5 On 15 November 2016 planning permission was granted under reference 
number 16/000354/OUT on appeal pursuant to an outline planning 
application for “the erection of four dwellings with access applied for (all 
other matters reserved)(re-submission of 15/01001/FUL)” on land shown 
edged red on the plan at Appendix 5. 
 

 4.6 On 6 December 2017 planning permission reference number 
17/00866/FUL was granted for the “change of use of existing barn (part 
residential) to create one dwelling including associated access and car 
parking (following demolition of existing workshop” in respect of the land 
shown edged red on the plan at Appendix 6. This permission is not subject 
to an occupancy restriction. 
 

5. Key issues and proposals 
 

 5.1 
 

The key issue is whether the provisions of the Agreement remain 
necessary and appropriate such that it would be reasonable to continue to 
retain them in the present circumstances.   
 

 5.2 The Agreement was entered into at a time when the use of the Land was 
wholly industrial in nature. A residential use has been introduced into the 
Land, albeit in connection with the existing use. The present owner has 

Page 2



indicated that it is intended to develop the Land and part of the wider site 
within his ownership for residential purposes. The Land and part of the 
wider site now have permissions for residential development in accordance 
with 16/00354/OUT (in outline) and 17/00866/FUL (full). If implemented, 
these will change the character of the use to wholly residential. 
 

 5.3 The indicative layout plan to planning permission 16/00354/OUT at 
Appendix 7 shows one of the proposed four residential units largely sited 
within the Land. If this permission were to be implemented it is likely that, 
however the site is eventually configured, a residential unit will be 
constructed wholly or partly within the Land. The future owners of such a 
dwelling would be subject to the restrictions in the Agreement, although the 
Inspector in considering the application 16/00354/OUT on appeal did not 
require the Agreement and has imposed all the conditions that he 
considered necessary and reasonable to control the approved 
development. 
 

 5.4 Similarly the council has imposed appropriate conditions on planning 
permissions 15/01000/FUL and 17/00866/FUL. In none of these decisions 
has any further control such as provided for in the Agreement been 
considered necessary. The officer view is that the sets of conditions on the 
existing permissions and the controls under the planning legislation are 
sufficient and appropriate. It is considered that continuation of the 
Agreement is not required should the existing permissions, or any 
combination of them be implemented. 
 

 5.5 Even if the Land continues to operate as at present and none of the 
permissions affecting the Land and/or the wider site are implemented, the 
officer view remains that there is no benefit in maintaining the Agreement. 
The Land remains subject to the general planning legislation and to any 
applicable conditions imposed on the implemented permissions. 
Furthermore any future planning applications would be considered on their 
own merits in accordance with the public interest and appropriate statutory 
provisions. Appropriate conditions would be imposed and obligations 
obtained as necessary and relevant to the individual applications. 
Consideration has been given to the scope of permitted development rights 
in the assessments in this Report 
 

 5.6 In all the circumstances therefore, the view is that the discharge of the 
Agreement would be acceptable in planning terms and that the retention 
of the Agreement no longer serves a planning purpose. Further, it is 
considered that there is no other purpose for which it would be necessary 
or proportionate to retain its provisions. 
 

 5.7 This request has been considered with reference to the qualified rights 
pursuant to Article 8 and Article 1 of the First Protocol of the European 
Convention on Human Rights. Public and private interests have been 
balanced and it is considered that there is no impact that would 
substantiate refusing this request. Due regard has been taken of the 
equality duty as contained within the Equality Act 2010 and the likely 

Page 3



impact on crime and disorder has also been considered. No relevant issues 
have been identified to affect discharge of the Agreement. 
 

 5.8 It is recommended that the Senior Solicitor is authorised to discharge the 
Agreement by way of an appropriate deed of discharge with the relevant 
parties. 
 

6. Delegated functions 
 

 6.1 
 

The discharge of agreements entered into under s52 of the former Town & 
Country Planning Act 1971 is not one of the functions listed for decision by 
Council, committee or officer under the Local Government (Functions & 
Responsibilities) Regulations 2000. Section 9D of the Local Government 
Act 2000 provides that functions not listed in those Regulations should be 
taken by the Executive. 
 

 6.2 The matters referred to in this report are considered under the following 
Executive function delegated to the Resources Portfolio Holder (as set out 
in Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution): determinations relating to the 
release or modification of covenants affecting land of which the Council 
has the benefit where the Head of Building Control does not have 
delegated power to deal with such requests. 
 

 

Financial and legal implications 

Finance 

There will be costs incurred for staff time.  These charges 
should be recovered from the applicant on a cost recovery 
basis and in line with any existing fees and charges 
applicable. 

Legal 

Section 52 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1971 
provided that a ‘local planning authority may enter into an 
agreement with any person interested in land in their area 
for the purpose of restricting or regulating the development 
or use of the land, either permanently or during such period 
as may be prescribed by the agreement’. Although section 
52 has been repealed, the power to vary or discharge 
agreements entered into under this power can be 
undertaken pursuant to the express, general power of 
competence under s1 Localism Act 2011. An appropriate 
deed of discharge will be required. 

 
Other risks/implications: checklist 

 
If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked with 
a  below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate specialist officers 
on those implications and addressed them in the body of the report. There are no 
significant implications arising directly from this report, for those issues marked with a 
x. 
 
 

Page 4



 
 

risks/implications  / x  risks/implications  / x 

community safety x  asset management x 

equality and diversity x  climate change x 

sustainability x  data protection x 

health and safety x  

 
 

report author telephone no. email date 

David Thow 01253 887287 david.thow@wyre.gov.uk 18/09/2018 

 
 

List of background papers: 

name of document date where available for inspection 

None   

 
 
List of appendices 
 
Appendix 1: The Agreement  
Appendix 2: Land ownership plan 
Appendix 3: Site plan to 02/00/0656 
Appendix 4; Site plan to 15/01000/FUL 
Appendix 5: Site plan to 16/000354/OUT (granted on appeal) 
Appendix 6: Site plan to 17/00866/FUL 
Appendix 7:  Indicative layout to 16/000354/OUT 
 
 
 
 
 
dems/ph/cr/18/0009dt2 

Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19

lmilnes
Typewritten Text
dems/ph/re/cr/18/009dt2 Appendices 1-7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Application for Discharge of an Agreement relating to land at Bloomfield Garage, Cockerham Road, Bay Horse, Forton



